Item 3

SEDGEFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE

Council Cham Council Office Spennymoor	·
Present:	Councillor A. Smith (Chairman) and
	 Councillors W.M. Blenkinsopp, T. Brimm, D.R. Brown, V. Chapman, D. Chaytor, Mrs. L. M.G. Cuthbertson, D. Farry, T.F. Forrest, P. Gittins J.P., Mrs. B. Graham, A. Gray, G.C. Gray, Mrs. J. Gray, B. Haigh, Mrs. S. Haigh, Mrs. I. Hewitson, A. Hodgson, T. Hogan, J.G. Huntington, Mrs. H.J. Hutchinson, Mrs. S. J. Iveson, J.M. Khan, Mrs. E. Maddison, C. Nelson, D.A. Newell, B.M. Ord, Mrs. E.M. Paylor, B. Stephens, K. Thompson, T. Ward and Mrs E. M. Wood
Apologies:	Councillors Mrs. A.M. Armstrong, B.F. Avery J.P, Mrs. D. Bowman, J. Burton, Mrs. K. Conroy, Mrs. P. Crathorne, V. Crosby, D.M. Hancock, J.E. Higgin, Mrs. L. Hovvels, G.M.R. Howe, Ms. I. Jackson, B. Lamb, Mrs. C. Potts, J. Robinson J.P, A. Warburton, W. Waters and J. Wayman J.P
DC.48/07	DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST No declarations of interest were received.
DC.49/07	MINUTES The Minutes of the meeting held on 17 th August, 2007 were confirmed as a

DC.50/07 APPLICATIONS - BOROUGH MATTERS

correct record and signed by the Chair.

Consideration was given to a schedule of applications for consent to develop. (For copy see file of Minutes).

In respect of Application No : 1 – Erection of 33 No. dwellings (Outline Application) – Land West of Gladstone Terrace, Ferryhill – Hellens Developments – Plan Ref : 7/2007/0227/DM – it was explained that outline permission was being sought for development of land to the west of Gladstone Terrace. The site was located within the residential framework of Ferryhill and following negotiations with the applicant's agent, information had been received to address officers concerns about the indicative details. Ecological and Geotechnical reports formed part of the application.

It was noted that the applicant's agent had expressed concerns regarding how the conclusion in relation to affordable housing had been reached. The Affordable Housing statistical analysis was outlined in the report suggesting that it should be provided at 20%. It was explained that a number of developers had accepted this form of analysis without question. The issue of Affordable Housing was the cornerstone of planning considerations. The proposed development, as it was for 33 residential units, exceeded the size threshold of 15 dwellings as defined in PPS3, requiring Affordable Housing to be provided if a need could be demonstrated. The Committee was also familiar with the use of Section 106 Agreements to secure aspects of a development that cannot be adequately dealt with by condition alone. The Committee was informed that officers were suggesting an amendment in respect of Recommendation 2 to include the payment of commuted sums and the submission of a management plan for the maintenance and management of open space, to read as follows :-

"The Head of Planning Services be given authority, in consultation with the Borough Solicitor, to issue a conditional planning approval in exchange for a Section 106 Legal Agreement in order to ensure that the proposal delivers a minimum of 20% affordable housing, the payment of a commuted sum of £500 per dwelling across the entire scheme in lieu of the shortfall in open space provision within the application site, and the submission of a management plan for the future management and maintenance of areas of open space including equipped play areas".

It was explained that Mr. Peter Clark, a neighbouring resident, was present at the meeting to outline his concerns with the development. He explained that he considered the development was not in keeping with the surrounding dwellings and he considered consistency was needed. To build flats in the location of detached high quality housing would not be in keeping with the surrounding area. He pointed out that flats had had to be demolished because of social problems. Any development should be high quality and of similar density to existing dwellings in the area. In response it was explained that this was an outline application and the mix of development on the site would be the subject of a further application and determined at a future meeting.

Scott Munroe from Ward Hadaway, the applicant's agents, was present at the meeting to discuss the application. He explained that the composition and types of properties would be the subject of another application as this was merely an outline application. He explained that developers developed properties which would sell on the market. Clarification was sought regarding "affordability" and the need to consider affordability at the timewhen the site was to be developed. It was suggested that affordability would be the subject of further consultation.

 RESOLVED : 1. That in respect of Application No : 1 - Erection of 33 No. dwellings (Outline Application) – Land West of Gladstone Terrace, Ferryhill – Hellens Developments – Plan Ref : 7/2007/0227/DM – the recommendation detailed in the schedule be adopted subject to Recommendation 2 being amended to read as follows:- "The Head of Planning Services be given authority, in consultation with the Borough Solicitor, to issue a conditional planning approval in exchange for a Section 106 Legal Agreement in order to ensure that the proposal delivers a minimum of 20% affordable housing, the payment of a commuted sum of £500 per dwelling across the entire scheme in lieu of the shortfall in open space provision within the application site, and the submission of a management plan for the future management and maintenance of areas of open space including equipped play areas".

2. In respect of the remaining application the recommendation detailed in the schedule be adopted.

DC.51/07 DELEGATED DECISIONS

Consideration was given to a schedule of applications which had been determined by officers by virtue of their delegated powers. (For copy see file of Minutes).

RESOLVED : That the schedule be received.

DC.52/07 APPEALS

Consideration was given to a schedule of appeals outstanding upto 4th September, 2007. (For copy see file of Minutes).

RESOLVED : That the schedule be received.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED: That in accordance with Section 100(a)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1and 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12a of the Act.

DC.53/07 ALLEGED BREACHES OF PLANNING CONTROL

Consideration was given to a schedule of alleged breaches of planning control and resultant action taken. (For copy see file of Minutes).

RESOLVED : That the schedule be received.

ACCESS TO INFORMATION

Any person wishing to exercise the right of inspection, etc., in relation to these Minutes and associated papers should contact Liz North 01388 816166 ext 4237 email: enorth@sedgefield.gov.uk

4